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CHRISTIAN KURETSKI, :
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- and -
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COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission™, for its Complaint against
defendants America’s Hedge Fund, L.P, (“AHF” or the “¥und”), Worldwide Partners LLC

(“Workiwide”) and Christian Kuretski (“Kuretski™) {collectively, the *Defendants™), and CK

Holdings Incorporated (“CK Holdings”), Kathleen Kuretski {“K. Kuretski”) and Peter Kuretski
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(“P. Kuretski”) (collectively, the “Relief Defendants™), alleges as follows: -
SUMMARY

1. The Commission brings this emergency enforcement action to halt an ongoing
frandulent offer and sale of securities in unr;agistcred transactions by AHFE and Worldwide,
acting through their principal, Kureiski, and a group of sales representatives. From at least
September 2001 to the present, the Defendants have raised approximately $1.6 miltion from
approximately 60 investors by offering and seiling investments in AHF, Worldwide and the
penny stocks. In commection with the offers and sales of these iﬂvest:rﬂeﬁts, the Defendants made
material misrepresentations and omissions to investors conceming, among other things, (i) the
nature of the investmenis, (ii} the use of investor proceeds, (iif) the expecied returns from the
investmenis, (iv) the liquidity of the investments, and (v) the risks of the investments, Tnvestors
in the Fund were told they were investing in a “baskel of various stocks™ with risk-free annnal
returns of at least 12% and as high as 40%, They were further told (hat they conld withdraw
funds from their investment and that their principal investment was guaranteed. The penny stock
investors werc told thai they could expect returns ag high as 200% over very short periods of
time, as soon as restrictions on the stock were lifted.

2. The Defendants have also concealed substantial losses fronm investors in the Fund,
Worldwide and the various penny stocks by, among other things, making material
migrepresentations about the value of investors’ accounts. Bank records demonsirate that
Kuretski has misappropriated a substantial porlion of investor proceeds for his own personal

benefit, including for cash withdrawals and his own separate busincss ventures, K. Kurctski,

Kuretski’s mother, P. Kuretski, Kuretski’s father, and CK Holdings, a company personally
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owned and controlled by Kuretski, have received proceeds of the fraud, The fraud is ongoing.
In the last three months, the Defendants have continually refhsed to distribute invesiors' funds
and have continued to misrepresent the value and safety of their investments.

VIOLATIONS

3. By virtue of the conduct alleged herein:

a. The Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly or in coneert, have engaged
and are engaging in acts, practices and courges of business, that constitute
violations of Sections 5(a), 5(¢c) and 17(2) of the Securities Act of 1933
(the “Securitics Act™), 15 U.8.C. §§ 77e{a), 77e(c) and 77q(a).

b. The Defendants, directly or indircetly, singly or in concert, have engaged
and are engaging in acts, praclices and courses of business that constitute
viofations of Section 10(b) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934 {the
“Exchange Acl™), 15 U.8.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R_ §

- 240.10b-5.

C. Defendant Kureiski, directly or indirectly, while not registered with the
Commission as a broker, has made use of the mails or means and
instrumentalities of interstate commerce to effcet transaclions in, or to
induce or attempt to induce the purchase or sale of securities, in viclation
of Scction 13(a) of the Bxchange Act, 15 U.5,C. § 780(a).

d. Defendants Kuretski and Worldwide, directly or indirectly, singly or in

concert, have engaged and are engaging in acts, practices and courses of

buginess, that constitute vielations of Sections 200(1} and 206(2) of the
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Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (the “Advisers Act™), 15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-
6{1) and 80b-6(2).
4. Unless the Defendants are preliminarily and permanently restrained and enjoined,
they will continne {o engage in the acts, praclices and courses of business set forth in this
Complaint and in acts, practices and courses of business of similar type and object.

NATURE OF THE PROCEEDINGS ﬁNj] RELIEF SOUGHT

5. The Commission brings this action pursuant to the authority conferred upon it by
Section 20{b) of the Securitics Act, 15 UL8.C. § 77t(b), Section 21{d)(1) of the Exchange Act,
15 US.C. § 78u{d)(1), and Section 209 ol the Advisers Act, 15 U.5.C. § 80b-9, seeking to
restrain and enjoin permtanently the Defendants from engaging in the acts, practices and courses
of busincss allcged herein.

6. The Comnission also seeks, as immediate relief, a temporary restraining order
against the Defendants, asset freczes against the Defendants and certain assets ol the Relief
Defendants, verified accountings from the Defendants and Relicf Defendants, an order barring
Kureﬁki from parhiecipating in penny stock offerings, expedited discovery, and an order
prohibiting the Defendants and Relicf Defendants from destroying or altering documents,

7. Finally, the Commission seeks a judgment ordering the Defendants and Relief
Deiendants to disgorge ill gotten gains with prejudgment interest thereon, and ordering the
Defendants to pay civil money penaltics pursnant to Section 20(c) of the Sceurities Act, 15
U.8.C. § 77t{c), and Scction 21{d}3) of ihe Exchange Act, 15 U.8.C. § 78u{d)}(3). The

Commission also seeks a judgment ordering Kuretski and Worldwide to pay civil moncy

penalties pursuant to Section 209 of the Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C. § 80b-9.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

8. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Seciion 22(a) of the
Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77v(a), Sections 21(e) and 27 ol the Exchange Agt, 15 U.S.C. §5
78u(e) and 73aa, and Section 214 of the Advisers Act, 15 U.5.C, § 80b-14.

9, Venue is proper in the Eastern District of New York pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1391. The Defendants, directly and indircetly, have made use of the means and instrumentalitics
of interstate commerce, or of the mails, in connection with the transactions, acts, practices and
courses of business alleged herein. A substantial part of the events and omissions giving rise to
the Commission’s claims occurred in the Eastern District of New York, including telephone ealls
from Kuretski and his saies associates soliciting investments based on misrepresentations, receipt
of investor funds, and misappropriating invesior funds for personal use from bank accounts
mamntamed at a bank on Staten Island, Further, all of the Defendants and Relief Defendants are
" domiciled in the Eastern District of New York,

THE DEFENDANTS

10, AHF is & limited partnership that was organized by Kuretski in New York State
an Detober 16, Eﬂﬂl. According to its offering memorandum, AHF*s principal place of business
is 125 Demopolis Avenue, Staten Island, New York, AIITF was “organized to invest in the
equitics and debit securities markets™ and has the “objective [ ] to produce above average capital
appreciation by actively investing [in] a portfolio of equity and debt rclated instruments.” On
January 7, 2002, AHF filed an exemption from registration Ir:-n Form D with the Commission.

11.  Worldwide is a limited liability company organized by Kuretski in New York on

Seplember 12, 2001. Worldwide™s principal place of business is 125 Demopolis Avenue, Staten
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Island, New York. Worldwide is the general partner of AHF and according to its offering
memorandwmn, was formed to manage the aclivities of AHF. As Managing Member, Kuretski
manages the operations of Worldwide, Worldwide issued an Offering Memorandum dated
October 5, 2001. On February 22, 2002, Wotldwide filed an exemption from registration on
Form D with the Commission.

12. Kuretski, age 31, resides at 134 Covington Circle in Staten Island, New York.
From time to time, he uses his parents’ residence address, 125 Demopolis Avenue, Staten Island,
New York, for business purposes. Since September 2001, Kwretski has served as the Managing
Membcr of Worldwide, which, in turn, is the General Partner of AHF. In his rolc as Managing
Member of Worldwide, he manages the investment activities of both AHI and Worldwide.
From 1994 to 2003, Ruretski worked as a registered representative with ten different broker-
dealers. Kurelski was most recenily registered with Phillip Louis Trading, Inc. until February
10, 2003,

13, CK Holdings is a corporalion incorporated by Kurctski in the State of New York
on February 1, 2002. CK Holdings® principal place of business is 125 Demopolis Avenue,
Staten Island, New Yotk.

14. K. Kuretski, age 55, resides at 125 Demopelis Avenue, Staten Island, New York.

She is Kuretski’s mother.
15, F. Kuretski, age 56, resides at 125 Demopolis Avenue, Staten Island, New York.
He is Kuretski’s father,

OTHER RELEVANT ENTITIES

16, US Medsys Corporation (“US Medsys™) is a corporation incorporated under the
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laws of the State of Colorado on May 1, 1995 under the name Prime Rate Income & Dividend
Enterprises (“PIDV™). Its principal offices are located in Denaver, Colorado. PIDV changed its
name to US Medsys Corp., in April 2004, US Medsys® sceurities are registered pursuant to
Section 12{g} of the Exchange Act and its securities trade on the OTC Bulletin board. At all
relevant thnes, US Mcdsys was a penny stock.

17. Daver Petroleum Cerporation (“Dover™) is a cotporation incorporated under the
lavws of the State of Nevada on July 9, 1998, Dover’s principal offices are located in Richmond
Hiil, Ontario, Canada, According to its 10-K, the company claims its business is the
development of oil and gas leases in Wyoming and Egypt. Dover’s securities are registered
pursuaitt to Scetion 12(g) of the Exchange Act and its securities trade through the Pink Sheets.
‘At all relevant times, Dover was a penny stock. US Medsys and Dover may be referred to hercin
collectively as the “penny stocks.”

FACTS

A, Kuretski's Raole

18.  Kuretski, as Managing Member of Worldwide, is invelved in every aspect of
Worldwide and AHF’s operations, Kuretski personally solicited investments from investors.
Knretski recruited the sales representatives to solicit investments in AHF, Worldwide and the
penny stocks on his behalf, regardless ol whether the sales representatives were registered with
broker-dealers or authorized to seil those investments. Kurelski paid these sales represenialives
commissions for leads.

19.  Kuretski was not registered with any broker-dealer for the majority of the time he

was soliciting investments in AHF, Worldwide and the penny stocks. For the brief period when
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he was registered, his solicitations were conducted outside of the scope of his work for the
broker-dealer.

B. Misrepresentations In The Offering Materials

20.  Kuretski used two privatc placement memoranda, which were sometimes distributed by
Knretski and hus associates to investors in AHF, One private placement memorandum was entitled
“America’s Hedge Fund, LLI™ and dated October 31, 2001: the other was entitled “Worldwide Partners
LLC* and dated October 5, 2001 (ca]lccfive]}f, the “Offering Memoranda™). Although the Offering
Memoranda clearly were designed to be nsed together, Kuretski and his sales representatives rarely, if
ever, provided both Offcring Memoranda to potential investors. Both Offering Memoranda represented
that the AHF offering was pursuant to exemptions from the registration requirements. The Offering
Memoranda falsely represented, among other things, (1) the nature of AHF’s business, {2) how investor
proceeds would be used, (3) how Kurelski and his associates would be compensated; (4) what
information would be pmvilded to investors, and (5} how mvestors could withdraw their fands from
AHF.

21.  The Offering Memoranda describe AHF as “organized to invest in the equities and debi
securities markets.” The Offering Memoranda further describe AHF’s business objective as “to produce
above average capital appreciation by actively invesling [in] a pertfolio of equily and debt rclated
instruments™ and state that “the General Pariner emiploys an opportunistic strategy, allowing the
combmation of numerous sophisticated investment strategies in pursuit of optimal portfolio
performance.”  For the management and administration of AIF, the Offering Menioranda represent that

Worldwide would rcecive an annual management fec of 3% of AHF’s assets. In addition, Worldwide,

as the General Partner of AHF would receive a percentage of the profits, and that percentage of profits
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can only be paid after a monthly 1% return to investors, With respect to information provided to
investors, the Offering Memoranda represent that each investor will receive, among other things: “(1)
annual financial statements, [and] (ii) monthly summaries of [AHT’s) performance....” The Offering
Memoranda give investors the right to xeview any materials relating to AFF at any time. The Offering
Memoranda also provide that investors can withdraw funds at the end of cach calendar quarter, after
their investment has been in AIIF for one year.

22.  The representations set forth in Para, 21 above arc false. Although investor funds were
sometimes uscd to purchase secunities, Kuretski used investor funds for his own benefit, putting much of
the mongy into (i) his own business ventures, including his restaurant and a tanning salon business, (ii)
the payment of personal expenses, including credit card payments and car payments and eortains for his
home, and (iti} the payment of commissions and salary to himself and his associates beyond what was
disclosed i the Offering Memoranda. Although the Offering Memoranda porlfay a sophisticated
investment stratcgy, to the extent Kuretski actually invested investors funds, his trading was not
sophisticated, and instead he purchased an assortment of unrelated investments, Although the AHF
Uffering Memorandum made absolutely no provision for payments to Kuretski directly, Kuretski paid
himself and his associates excessive amownts unrelated to the management or adminisiration of AHF.
Although investors were promised monthly smﬁmaries and annual financial statements, investors rarely
received monthly statements and nonc received annual financial statcments, foreing them to rely on
Kuretski’s oral misreprescntations as the only source of information about the valuc of their accounts.
Finally, investors, after having their money in AHF for over a year, repeatedly asked to withdraw their

money, but were generally denied withdrawals or repeatedly promised checks that never arrived,

23.  The Defendants knew ot were reckless in not knowing that thesc representations were
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false. Kuretski managed AHTF and Worldwide’s investments and bank accounts and, therefore, knew or
was in a position to know that investor funds were being used in a manner inconsistent with the

representations set forth in the Offering Memoranda.

C. Misrepresentations Abowt The Use Of Investor Funds

24.  Kuretski and his salcs representatives told invesiors that their funds would be used
by the Fund to make investments in a basket of varions securities and that the Fund cngaged in
“riskless arbitrage™ trading. They told investors that “riskless arbitrage™ was essentially buying
and selling large amounts of a particuiar stock simullaneously on different markets around the world
when there is a price difference across those markels. They claimed that the Fund used a special
trader, who monitered the international markets for arbitrage opportunities, and assured investors
that the trading was “riskless” because the buying and selling occurred al the same time, and if
there was no difference in price, the transaction would not be yndertaken.

25.  The representations set forth above were false. Although the Fund maintained
trading accounis at various brokeragces, a significant amount of investor funds were never
invested in securities or trading at all. Insiead, Kuretski immediately diverted investor funds to

the Worldwide and CK Heldings bank accounts, which he alone controlled. Kuretski then used

those accounts for cash and personal expenscs. To the extent investor funds were invested, the
funds were not used for “riskless™ arbitrage irading.

26.  Kuretski and his sales representatives also offered and sold shares of US Medsys
and Dover to investors who were already invested in the Fund. Unbeknownst to several investors,
they purchased their individual shares from the assets of' the Fund, in which investors held an

interest, and their payments were not credited to the Fund’s accounts. Moreover, in at least four

i




Case 1:04-cv-04640-NG-RML Document 1 Filed 10/28/04 Page 11 of 24 PagelD #: 11

instances, Kuretski and his sales representatives instructed investors to make their checks out to an
entirely unrelated company named “Visionary Medical Consultants.” At least two of those
investors received their shares from Worldwide even though their checks were made payable to
Visionary Mcdical Consultants. In some instances, Kurctski provided fewer shares of stock than the
investor actuaily paid for.

27. Kuretski knew or was reckless in not knowing ihat investors were essentially
purchasing shares of stock from funds that (hese invcéters airesudy owned. H;a managed AHF and
Worldwidc’s investments and bank accounts and, therefore, knew or was in a position o know
that investor funds were being used in a manner inconsistent with his representations about how

' their funds would be invested. Likewisc, Kuretski knew or was in a position to know that the UJS
Medsys and Dover shares he sold to investors were, in effect, their own assets and that he was
not delivering the shares promised.

. Baseless Price And Profit Predictions

28, Kuretski and his sales representatives guaranteed some AHF investors an annual
12% return, and promised even higher retuens to others.  Qne investor was told that sl retums
in the 20 to 40 percent range were a “sure thing.” Kuretski lold another investor that AHF
generated “returns greater than regular stocks™ and that the Fund had “cxceptional profits.” One of
Kuretski’s associates told another investor that she would receive an immediate 30% retuin by
investing in the Fund, and that her principal invesiment would be preserved for a year, And, one of
Kuretski’s associates told yet another investor that the Fund had an “astronomical” payback and
promised 15% monthly returns. In many instances, Kuretski and his sales represcntatives assured

mvestors that Kuretski would not take a fee until the Fund had achieved a 12% return. Kureisk] and

11
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his representatives, however, had no reasonable basis for making these goarantees and projections,
In fact, Kuretski and his representatives knew that the Fund, organized in September 2001, had no
proven track record, with ne past performance of trading or earnings.
| 29, Kurelski and his sales representatives aiso made an assortment of baseless
representations about US Medsys and Dover stock, including representations that the stocks would
increase in price within specific time periods. For instance, they told investors that (1) US Medsys
was plamming an 1PO éh-::rtl}f, and that the stock would both go up in price and be frecly tradable
after that point; (i) Dover would be listed on NASDA(Q within sixty days and guaranteed that the
price would go up to $4 per share when it was trading below $2 per share; (ili) if the price of US
Medsys stock went down in vahie, the investor would be given more shares to ensure that he did not
losc money; and {iv) US Medsys would go froin $1 to $3 per share within two weeks. Kurctski and
his representatives, however, had no reasonablc basis for making these guarantess and projections.
30.  The Defendants knew or were reckless in not knnwing that these representations
were false. Kuretski managed AHF and Worldwide’s investments and bank accounts and,
therefore, knew or was in a position to know that there was no reasonable bagis for his
exaggerated performance predictions, particularly in view of the fact that he did not even place a
significant portion of investor funds in legitimate investments, Likewisc, Kuretski knew or was
in a position to know that he had no reasonable basis {or his represcntations concerning US
Medsys and Dover.

E. Misrepresentations Abont Lignidating Funds And Selling Shares

31, Kuretski and his sales representatives told investors different things about when

they could have access 1o the money they were investing, ranging from availability whenever the

12
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investor needed the finds, to availability on 30 or 90 days nolice, to availability after a year. The

Fund’s Offering Memorandum represents that investors could withdraw funds twelve months
after their initial capital contribintion, provided that they request the withdrawal at the end of a
calendar quarter and on sixty days wrilten notice to the general pariner. Contrary to these
representations and despite numerous requests, certain investors have been unable to lignidate
their investments or obtain distributions despite numerous attempts.

32.  Kuretski has given invesiors a number of excuscs for why they are unahle to
withdraw their fimds. He told at least one investor, falsely, that a brokerage firm where AHF
maintained an account froze AHF’s assets after it discovered that Kuretski’s sales representatives
had been selling interests in AHF away from the firm. Kuretski has also told investors, falsely,
that the I'und’s assets are tied up in restricted stocks and unavailable wntil the restri;;:tions
expired. Sotne investors were gharanteed their money back if they waited for the resﬂ‘iction;s fo
end. In early 2004, Koretski assured investors in US Medsys that the restrictions on their stock
would be lifled, and they would be able to seil their shares in June 2004. But, when the investors
tried to sell their shares in June 2004, Kuretski told them (hat the restriction had been extended to
Novermther 2004,

33, The Defendants knew or were reckless in not knowing that these representations
were false. Kuretski managed AHF and Worldwide’s investmenis and bank accounts and,
therefore, knew or was in a position to know that his excuses were not true and that, as a result ol
his misappropriation of investor funds, he would not be ablc to relum investots funds as

promised,

13
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F. The Frandulent Lulling Of Investors

34. Toperpemate their fraudulent scheme, Kuretski and his sales representatives
adopled a number of strategies to discourage withdrawals and lall AHF investors into believing that
their investments were safe and secure. Kuretski rarcly sent investors account stalements. As g
result, investors were forced to rcly on Kuretski’s oral misrepresentations about the value of their
accounts. In addition, Kuretski and his representaiives have told investors the same fabrications sel
forth above concenmiing the liquidity of their investiments to ecncourage them to maintain their
investments in the Fund. In one instance, Kuretski attempted to settle an investor's demands for the
reurn of her $300,000 investment by offering her 100,000 shares of US Medsys stock, claiming that
the stock price would go up fom $1 to $3 per share by November 2004. Kuretski mntinuf:.s to lull
iﬁvestors with promises of the imminent return of their funds.

35.  The Defendants knew or were rockless in not knowing that these representations
were falsc. Kuretski managed AHF and Worldwide’s investments and bank accounts and,
therelore, knew or was in a position to know that his representations concerning the value of
their accounts were not true and that, as a result of his misappropriation of investor funds, they
would not be able to return investor funds as promised.

G. Misappropriation And Dissipation Of Investors’ Funds

36.  Kuretski has misappropriated and dissipated investors’ funds through withdrawals
for cash, personal expenses and for use in conneclion with Kuretski’s other, unrelated busingss
venmures. Belween September 2001 and the present, Kurelski raised al least $1,557,895 from
investors, and has misappropriated at least $1,528,552 of that amount,

37, Kuretski accomplished this aggressive misappropriation both by directly

14
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withdrawing funds from AHF aind Worldwide’s bank and brokerage accounts for his personal

use and by transferring funds into accounts in CK Holdings® name and, then, using the funds for
cash, personal expenses and to fund wholly unrelated business veniures. Kuretski also ysed
imvestor funds to purchase his residence and two Juxury aniomobiles -- a Porsche sports car and a
Lexus SUV,

38, Kuretski has transferred investor finds to, or for the benofit of, Relief Defendanis
P. Kuretski and K. Kuretski. Kuretski used investor funds to purchase the residence at 134
Covington Circle, Staten Island, New York, which is held in the name of K. Kurelski, and to pay
for substantial renovations and imprevemenis to that property.

39, InMay and August 2004, Kuretski transferred investor funds io his father, writing
three checks to P. Kuretski for a total of $89,000 from the CK. Holdings account.

. Recent Conduct And Ongoing Risk To The Public

40.  Kuretski has engaged in a pervasive and ongoing fraud and continues to make
fraudulent representations to investors. For instance, Kuretski recently told an investor not to
worry about his US Medsys investment, that he would receive a certificate shortly and that the
stock would go up in value in November 2004 when the trading restriction is lifted. Tn August
2004, Kuretski told another investor that he would receive 3,200 shares of US Medsys, but
Kureiski directed the transfer agent to issue oply 2,000 ghares to the investor. Wien questioned

about the discrepancy, Kuretski promised to obtain the 1,200 missing shares for the investor and

told the investor that he wounld receive the slock certificate shortly. The investor has yet to
receive the certiftcate. In addition, in August 2004, Kuretski offered an investor’s attorney

100,000 shares of TIS Medsys to settle the investor’s potential claim, telling the altorney that the

is
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shares wouid go up in value o $3 per share when it became freely tradable in November 2004,

41, Morcover, Kuretski continues to dissipate investor Tunds, withdrawing cash from

the AHI, Worldwide and CK Holdings accounts. In addition, the trading restrictions on more
than 1 million shares of US Medsys stock that Kuretski controls wiil be lifted on November 12,
2004, and Kuretski has indicated to investors that he intends to liguidate those shares. Unless
action is taken immediately, investors may lose the benefit of any remaining funds in the bank
and securities accounts and the value of these securities,

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act
(All Defendants)

42. Paragraphs 1 through 41 are realleged and incorporated by refercnce us if fully set
forth herein,

43.  From at Jeast Scptember 2001 through the present, the Defendants, in the offer
and sale of securities, by the use of the means and instruments of transportation or
communication in interstate commerce or by the use of the mails, directly and indirectly, have
employed and are employing devices, schemes and arlifices to defraud.

44, Fram at least September 2001 through the present, the Drefendants, in the offar
and sale of securitics, by the use of the means and instruments of transportation or
communication in interstate commerce or by the use of the mails, directly and indirecily, have
obtainted and are obtaining money and property by means of untrue statements of material et or
omissions to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, and have engaged and are engaging

in transactions, practices or courses of business which operate as a fraud and deceit upen their

16
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investors.
45. The Defendanis knew or were reckless in not knowing that the representations sei

forth herein were false and misleading.

46, By reason of the activities desceribed herein, the Defendants have violated and are
violating Section 17(a) of the Securitics Act, 15 U.8.C. §77q(a).
SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5
(All Defendants)

47.  Paragraphs | througlh 46 are realleged and incorporated by reference as if fully set
forth hercin.

48, From at least September 2001 through the present, the Defendants, in connection
with the purchase and saic of securities, directly and ndirectly, by the use of the means and
instrumentalities of interstate commerce or of the mails, have employed and are employing
devices, schemes and artifices (o defraud; have made and are making untrhe statements of
material fact and have omitted aud arc omitting to stale material facts necessary in order to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were madc, not misleading;
and have engaged and are engaging in acts, practices and courses of business which operate as a
fraud and deccit upon investors.

49.  The Defendants knew or were reckiess in not knowing that the representations sct
forth herein were faise and misleading,

50. By reason of the activitics described hevein, the Defendants have violated and are
violating Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §§78j(b), and Rule 10b-5, 17 C.E.R.

§240.10b-5, promulgated thercunder.
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THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violations of Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act
{All Defendants)

51 Paragraphs | through 50 are realleged and incorporated by reference as if fully set
forth herein.

32.  From at least September 2001 through the present, the Defendants, directly or
indirectly, singly or in concert, have made use of the means or instruments of transportation or
communication in interstate commerce, or of the mails, to offer and sell securities through the
use or medium of any prospectus or otherwise when no registration statement has been filed or
was in effcct as 1o such securities and when no exemption from registration was available.

33. Byreason of the activities described herein, the Defendanis have violated and are
violating Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. §§77e(a) and 77¢(c).

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violation of Section 15(a) of the Exchange Act
{Kuretski)

54.  Paragraphs 1 through 53 are rcalleged and incorporated by reference as if fully set
forth hercin.

55 From at least September 2001 through the present, Defendant Rurctski, directly or
indirectly, while not registered with the Commission as a broker, has made use of the mails or

means and instrumentaliiss of intcrstale commerce to effect transactions i, or 1o mduce or

altempt to induce the purchase or sale of securities.
56. Defendant Kuretski committed these acts while engaged in the business of
effecting transaclions in securities for the account of olhers.

37. Byreason of the activities described herein, Defendant Kuretski has violated and

18
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is violating Section 15(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.8.C. § 780(a).

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
Yiolations of Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Advisers Act
(Worldwide and Kuretski)

58, Paragraphs | through 57 arc realleged and incorporated by roference as if fully set
forth herein. :

59.  From at leasl September 2001 throngh the present, Defendant Worldwide, as an
investment adviser, and Defendant Kuretski, as an associated person of" an invesiment adviser,
directly and indirectly, by the usc of the means and instrumentalitics of interstate commerce or of
the mails, have employed and are employing devices, schemes and artifices to defrand AHF anil
Worldwide investors, and have engaged and are chgaging in transactions, practices and courses
of business which operated as a frand and deceit upon these iuvestors.

60.  The Defendants knew or were reckless in not knowing that the representations set
forth herein were false and misleading,

61. By reason of the activitics described herein, Defendants Worldwide and Kuretski
have violated and are .vinlating Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Advisers Act, 15 U.8.C. §§
80b-6(1) and 80b-6(2).

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Commission respectfully requests that the Court grant the following
relief:
I
An Order temporarily and preliminarily, and a Final Judgment permanently, resiraining

and enjoining the Defendants, their agents, servants, employees and attormeys and all persons in

19
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active concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of the mjunction by personal
service or otherwise, and each of them, from future violations of Sections 3(a), 5(c) and 17{a) of
the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 77e(a), 77e(c) and 77q(a), Section 1 0(b) of the Exchange Act,
153 U.5.C. § 78i(b) and Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5.

II.

An Order temporarily and preliminarily, and a Final Judgment permanently, resiraining
and enjoining Defendant Kuoretski, his agents., servants, employees and attomeys and ali persons
in active concert or pariicipation with them whe receive actual notice of the injunction by
personal service or otherwise, and each of them, from firture violations of Section 15(a} of the
Exchange Act, 15 1J.58.C. § 780(a).

L1

An Order temporarily and preliminarily, and a Final J udgment penmanently, restraining
and enjoining Defendants Worldwide and Kurctski, their agents, servants, employees and
attorneys and all persons in active concert or participation with them who reccive actual noiice of
the injunction by personal service or otherwise, and cach of them, from future violations of
Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Advisers Act, 15 U,5.C. §§ 800-6(1) and 80b-6(2).

| 1V,

An Oxder directing the Defendants and Relief Defendant CK Holdings, their agents,
banks, debtors, bailees, servants, employees, and attorneys-in-fact, and those persons in active
coneert or partictpation with the Defendants and Relief Defendant €K Holdings who receive
actual notice of said Order by personal scrvice, facsimile, or otherwise, and each of them, to hold

and retain within their control, and otherwise prevent any withdrawal, transfer, pledge,
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encumbrance, assignment, dissipation, concealment, or other disposal of any of the Defendants’
and Relief Defendant CK Holding’s assets, fands or other properties of any kind whercver
situated, and assets over which said Defendants and Relief Defendant CK Holdings have conlrol
by signatory authori.ty or otherwise.

V.

An Order restraining and enjoining Relicf Defendant K.Kuretski, her agents, banks,
debtors, bajlees, servants, employees, and attorneys-in-fact, and those persons in aclive concert
or participation with her, and any other persons or entities, including but not limited to persons or
entities who hold a security interest in the property identificd below, who receive actual notice of
said Ordet by personal service, facsimile, or otherwise, and each of them, from taking any action
to transfer, pledge, seize, sell, foreclose, encumber, assign, dissipate, conceal or otherwise taking
any action whatsocver that would impact or impair the value of the residence located at 134
Covington Circle, Staten Island, New York.

VL.

An Oxder directing Relief Defendant P. Kuretski, his agents, banks, debtors, bailces,
servants, employees, and altomeys-in-fact, and those persons in active concert or participation
with him who receive actual notice of said Order by personal service, facsimile, or otherwise,
and each of them, to bold and retain within their comtrol, and otherwise prevent any withdrawal,
transfer, pledge, encumbrance, assignment, dissipation, concealment, or other disposal of any
asscts or funds in any bank account of, held by, or under the control of P, Kuretski, whether held

in his name or for his direct or indirect beneficial interest wherever situated.
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Vil
An Order temporarily and preliminarily, and a Final Judgment permanently, restraining
and enjoining Kuretski from participating in any future penny stock offering, pursnant to Section
20(g) of the Securitics Act, 15 U.8.C. § 771(g). and Section 21(d)(6) of the Exchange Act, 15
U.S.C. § 78u(d)(6). |
VIIL
An Order dir&ﬁng cach of the Defendants and Relief Defendants to file with this Court
and sefve upon the Commnission, within three (3) business days, or within such extension of time
as the Cominission staff agrees to, a verified written accounting, signed by each Defendant and
Relief Defendant under penalty of perjury, sctting forth:

(1) All assets, liabilities and property currently held directly or indirectly by or for the
benefit of such Defendant or Relief Defendant, inclnding but not limiled to bank
accounts, brokerage accounls, investments, business interasts, loans, lines of
credit, and reai and pcrs-::-nal. property wherever situated, describing cach asset and
liability, its current location and amount;

(2) Al money, property, assets, and other income received by such Defendant or
Relief Defendant, or for their direct or indirect benefit, in or at any thne from
September 1, 2001 to the date of the accounting, deseribing the source, amount,
disposition and current lacation of each of the items listed;

(3) All assets, funds, securities, real or personal property of customers of such
Defendant or Relief Defendant, transferred to or for the benefit of such Defendant

or Relief Defendant in or at any time from September 1, 2001 1o the date of the
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accounting, and the disposition by such Defendant or Relief Defendant of such
assets, funds, securities, real or personai property;
(4)  Ali money, property, assets and other income transferred from such Defendant or

Relief Defendant, including transfers to any bank account, brokerage account or

other account, or to any individual, or entity, in or at any time from September 1,
2001 to the daie of the accounting; and
(6)  The names and last known addresses of all bailees, debtors, and other persons and
entities which arc currently holding the asscts, funds or property of snch
Defendant or Relief Defendant.
IX.
An Order permitting expedited discovery.
X.

An Order enjeining and restraining each of the Defendants and Relief Defendants, and
any person or entity acting at their direction or on their behalf, from destroying, altcring,
concealing, or otherwise interfering wilh the access of the Commission to relevant documents,
beoks and records.

XI.

A Final Judgment ordering each of the Defendants and Relief Defendants to disgorge
their iil-gotten gains, plus prejudgment interest, and such other and further amount as the Court
may find appropriate.

XL
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A Final Judgment ordering each of the Defendants to pay civil money penalties pursuant
to Section 20{d) of the Securities Act, 15 U.8.C. § 771d), and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78u{d)(3), and ordering Worldwide and Kureiski to pay civil money penalties
pursuant to Section éﬂ? of the Adviscrs Act, 15 U,8.C. § 80b-9,

XIiL
Such other and further relief as to this Couri deems Just and proper.

Dated: New York, New York
October A3, 2004

By: ql U(/‘ 9 }"‘

G. William Cureter (GWC-8618)
elene T. Glotzer (HG-8531)

Stéphanie D, Shuler (85-4283)

Gwen A. Licardo (GL-3648)

Sceurities and Exchange Commission
233 Broadway

New York, New York 10279
Telephone {646) 428-1500

Attornevs for Plaintiff

Of Counsel:
Brucc Karpati
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ARBITRATION CERTIFECATION

L {;ﬂf\fz‘.’h . Li o Of 0 , counsel for Sepuritres and E‘_i{'/hm & C?Mﬂuuﬁ&\{?ﬂ
. do hereby certify pursuant to the Local Arbitration Rulc 83.10 that to the b é\

my knowledge and belief the damages recoverable in the above captioned civil action exceed the

sum of 5150000 exclusive of intercst and costs.

Relief other than monelary damages is sought.

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT - FEDERAL RULES CIVII. PROCEDURE 7.1

Identify any parcnt corporation and any publicly held corporation that owus 10% or more or its

stocks:
None _ el

Did the cause arise in Nassau or Suffolk County? ﬂ'ﬁ " -

If answered yes, please indicate which county.

County of residence of plaintiffs) (1) Uﬂ:ﬁ’a{ C.fj\'g?;\'{?:, ?1.&1 n’ﬁ‘FF
(2).
3)

County of residence of defendant{s) (1) ﬁ\ {,L\M Ci/\dg _(L‘-f ) el Mﬂ'ﬂof
(2) (5 AV IRV |
(3)" - 1\‘@) “B{ (/{AMM A

I am currently admitted in the Eastern District of New York and currently @ member in
good standing of the bar of this court.

Yes / No

Are you eurréntly the subject of any disciplinary action(s) in this or any other state or
federal court?

Yes (If yes, please explain) No V/

Please provide your E-MAIL Address and bar codc below. Your bar codc consists of the initials
of your first and last name and the first four digits of your social security number or any other
four digit number registered by the attormey with the Cleck of Cowrt,

(This information must be provided pursuant to lpeal rule 11.1(b) of the civil tules).
ATTORNEY BAR CODE: - ‘i

E-MAIL Address: \sfﬁﬂu’ dogo & sec. ﬁm"

1 conscat to the use of electronic ﬁlmg procedures adopted by the Court in Administrative Order
No. 97-12, “In re Electronic Liling Procedures(LI'P)Y”, and consent to the clecironic service of all
papers.

Signature: O\QW&LJO A7 Mf’“‘
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CIVIL COVER SHEET ATTACHMENT A

DEFENDANTS:

1. America’s Hedge Fund, L.P.
2. Worldwide Partners, LLC
3. Christian Kuretski

RELIEF DEFENDANTS:
4. CK Holdings Incorporaied
5. Kathleen Kuretski
6. Peter Kuretski

ATTORNEYS (IF KNOWN):

Pairick V. Parrotta

77 Targee Street

Staten Island, NY 10304

Tel, {718) 556-9800

Counsel] for Christian Kuretski

CAUSE OF ACTION {CITE THE 1.8, CIVIL STATUTE UNDER WHICH YOU ARE
FILING AND WRITE A BRIEF STATEMENT OF CAUSE):

Defendants America’s Hedge Fund, L.P., Worldwide Partners, LLC and Christian
Kuretski have violated and are violating Sections 5(a), 5(¢), and 17{a) of the Securities
Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”) (15 U.8.C. §§ 77e(a), 77¢(c), and 77q(a)), Sections 10(b)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 {“Exchange Act™ (15 U.8.C. § 78j(b)) and
Exchange Act Rule 10b-5 (17 C.F.R, § 240.10b-5). Defendani Christian Kuretski has
violated and is violating Section 15(a) of the Exchange Act (15 US.C. § 780(a)).
Defendants Christian Kuretski and Worldwide Partners LLC have violated and are
violating Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C.
§§ 80b-6(1) and 80b-6(2)).

The Commission brings this action pursuant to the authority conferred upon it by
Section 20(h) of the Securities Act (15 U.S.C. § 77t(b)), Section 21(d}{1) of the Exchange
Act {15 U.S.C. § 78u{d}(1)} and Scction 209 of the Adviscrs Act {15 11.8.C. § 80b-9} 1o
permanently enjein the Defendants from future violations of the federal securities laws
and obtain other relief.
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DEFENDANTS® ADDRESSES AND COUNTIES

1, America’s Hedge Fund, L.P.
125 Demopolis Avenue
Staten Island, New York 10312
Richmond County

2. Worldwide Pariners, LLC
125 Demopolis Avenue
Staten Island, New York 10312
Richmond County

3. Christian Kuretski
134 Covington Circle
Staten Island, New York 10312
Richmond County

4. Kathleen Kuretski
125 Demopolis Avenue
Staten Island, New York 10312
Richmond County

5. Peter Kuretski
125 Demopolis Avenue
Staten Island, New York 10312
Richmend County

6. CK Holdings Incorporated
125 Demopolis Avenue
Staten Island, New York 10312
Richmond County
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MARK K. SCHONFELD (MS-2748)
REGIONAL DIRECTOR

Attorney for Plaintiff

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Northeast Regional Office
233 Broadway i? '_ \J’
New York, NY 10279 &% X
Tel. (646) 428-1650

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Plaintiff,
- against -

AMERICA’S HHEDGE FUND, L.P.,
WORLDWIDE PARTNERS LIL.C, and
CHRISTIAN KURETSKI,

04 Civ. ()

Defendants,
-and -

CK HOLDINGS INCORPORATED,
KATHLEEN KURETSKI, and
PETER KURETSKI,

Relief Defendants.

—————— UL A UL E S === ——— —_ ----.____-___..-._-..-..,.,,______,.K

DECLARATION OF TERRENCE P. BOHAN

1, Terrence P. Bohan, pursuani to 28 U.S.C. 1746, declare as follows:
1. I am over 18 years of age and am employed as a Stafl” Accountant at the Northeast
Regional Office of the Securities and Exchange Cornission (“Conmmission™). Thave been

emploved at the Commission for nine years, My duties are to conduct examinations of registered

and unregistered broker-dealcrs to ensure their compliance with the federal securitics laws. In
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September 2004, 1 was assigned to assist in an cxamination in conncetion with this action. I
makc this Dieelaration in support of the Commission’s Application for 2 Temporary Restraining
Order, Preliminary Injunction, And Other Relrel involving defendants America’s Hedge Fund,
L.P. (“AHF” or the “Fund™); Worldwide Partners, LLC (“Worldwide™); and Christian Kuretsldi
{(“Kuretski™) {collectively, the “Defendants™), as well ag CK Holdings Incorporaled (*CK.
Holdings™"); Kathleen Kuretski (K. Euretski™); and Peter Kuretski (P, Kuretski™) as relief
defendants {collectively, the “Relief Defendants™}.

2, As alleged in the Commission’s Complaint, this action concerns fraudulent
securities offerings by AHE, Worldwide and Kureiski, as principal of AHF and Worldwide, and
the misappropriation of investors’ funds by Kuretski with and through the Relief Defendants. As
a result of my cxamination, I have preliminarily determined the facts set forth horein, The
Commission’s Complaint is being filed herewith along with this declaration.

3. I make this Declaration based upon personal knowledge, information and belicf.
The sources of my information and the bascs of my belicf are documents obtained and reviewed
by the Commission staff (annexed as Exhibit YVolumes [ and II, submitted together with this
Declaration), interviews of eleven investors in AL and Worldwide, conducted by myself and
other Commission staff, imformation provided to me by other members of the Commission stall,
and information provided to the Commission by the I'BI. The statements of others st forth
herein are described in substance and in part, and not verbatim. To the extent thal there are
assertions herein concerming dates and numbers, they are approximate, based upon information

and evidence gathered to date. Beeausc the Commission submits this Declaration for the limited

purpose of supporting its Application for a Temporary Restraining Order, Preliminary
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Injunction, And Other Relief, I have not set forth each and every fact that I know about the
inve.stigaticrn..

4, Dwring the staff’s investigation, which is ongoing, 1 have (1) conducted interviews
of eleven Fund investors; (ii) reviewed offering documenis for AHF and Worldwide; (iii)
reviewed the bank account and brokerage records for AIF, Worldwide and CK Heldings; (iv)
reviewed records of certain Fund investor complaints ledged with the National Association of
Securities Dealers (“*NASD™) and the Statc of Michigan; (v) reviewed transfer agent records
reflecting ownership of shares sold by Kuretski and his sales associates; and (vi) participated in
an intexrview of a former sales representative whoe worked with Kuretski. In reviewing {hese
documents, I have determined that since Scptember 2007 to the present, the Defendants
successlully solicited approximately $1.6 million from c¢lose to 60 investors around the country.
O behalf of AHF and Worldwide, Kuretska and his sales representatives, who worked lor Kuretski,
salicited investiments that they represented to be no-risk and guaranteed profils, Kuretski and his
sales representatives largeted unsophisticated investors, who had little or no investment experience,
many of whom entrusted the Defendants with their reticement savings. They furlher pressured
investors into buying sharcs by telling them that they had a limited time to invest before the
oppertunity would cxpire. Knretski and the sales representatives solicited investors without being
associated with any broker-dealer.

3. Kuretski and his sales representatives also solicited some AHF investors and others
to purchase US Medsys Corp. ("US Medsys™) and Dover Petroleum Corp. (“Dover”) stock directly
from them. Misrepreseniations about these stocks included, among other things, that (i) US Medsys

would be doing an IPO shertly; (i) Dover would be listed on (he NASDAQ within sixty days; (iii}

trading restrictions on the stocks wonld be ifled innmediately; and (iv) that the stock price was
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muarantesd go up in value after the restrictions were lifted. In some cases, Kuretski sold AHF and
Worldwide invesiors stock already issued to AHF and Worldwide, so that investors by investing in
AHF effectively were purchasing the sceurities from funds that they already purportedly owned.

6. Kuretski hid losses that were occurring in AHF and Worldwide by, among other
things, failing te send investors regular account statements and annual financial reports for the
Fund. Kurctski misappropriated investors™ (unds through cash withdrawals, payment of
extraordinary and unauthorized managenient fees to himsclf, payment o his own personal
expenses, payiment of commissions to sales representatives working on his belalf, and by
transferring AHF investor funds into bank accounts for Worldwide and CK Holdings. Kuretski
then used those accounts for persenal expenses and payments unrelated to the Fund and
Worldwide. Based on currenl evidence, it appears that the fraud is ongoing and there is
significant risk that any remaining asscts will be dissipaled in the near future.

L.
BELEVANT PARTIES AND ENTITIES
A, Detfendants

7. AHF is a limited partnership organized by Kuretski in New York State on
October 16, 2001, A true and correct copy of AHF’s Certificate of Limited Parinership and
filing receipt with the New York State Department of State i3 anmexed as Ex. 1. According to its
Private Placement Mcemorandum (“Offering Memorandum™), dated October 31, 2001, iis
principal place of business is lisied as 125 Demopolis Avenne, Staten Istand, New York, A true
and correct copy of the [F'und’s Offering Memerandum is annexed as Ex. 2. The Offering

Memorandum states that AHF is a hedge [imd with the objective of “produc|[ing] above average

capital appreciation by aclively investing [in] a portfolic of equity and debl related instruments. ™
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In addition to producing high returns, the Partnership has a secondary goal of “preservation of
capital and will attempt to do so by raising cash when appropriale, utilizing options and/or short
selling.” (Ex. 2 at 1.) Kuretski, as Managing Member of Worldwide Partners, LLC, controls
AHF. On January 7, 2002, AHF filed a Notice of Sale via a Form D {iling, indicating that it
intended to rely upon an exemption from registration with the Comnission, a tme and correci
copy of which is attached anncxed hercto as Ex. 3. AHF is not registered wiih the Commission
or any state as an investment adviser.

g. Worldwide is a linuited liability company orgamzed by Kuretski in New York on
September 12, 2000, A true and correct copy of Werldwide’s Articles of Organization, filing
receipt witl'; the New York State Department of State, and a Worldwide corporate resolution ftled
by Kuretski with the Staten Island Bank and Trust are annexed as Ex, 4, Worldwide is the
general pariner of AHF and was formed to manage the activities of AHF. Kurctski is the
Managing Mcmber of Worldwide. Worldwide issued an Offering Memorandun dated October
5, 2001, a true and correct copy of which 1s armexed as BEx. 5. On February 22, 2002, Worldwide
filed an exemption firom registration on Form D with the Commission, & true and correct copy of
which is annexed hereto as Ex. 6. Worldwide is not registered with the Commission or any state
as an investinent adviser.

9. Kuretski, age 31, resides in Staten Tsland, New York. The FI3! has informed the
Cormmission staff that Kurelski resides at 134 Covington Circle, Staten Island, New York, but
also uscs the address of his parcuts’ residence, 125 Demopolis Avenue, Staten Island, New York,
for certain business purposes, Since September 2001, Kuretski has served as the Managing

Member of Worldwide, which, in turn, is the General Partner of AHF. From 1994 to 2003,

Kuretski worked as a registered representative with ten <hfferent broker-dealers, most recently
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with Phiilip Lowis Trading, Inc. until Febary 10, 2003, Annexed as Ex. 7 1s a true and correet
copy of Kuretski’s record, maintaincd by the Central Registration Deposilory of the National
Association of Securities Dealers, which sets forth Kuretski’s history of association with broket-
dealers. Kuretski personally solicited investments from investors in AHF, Worldwide, US
hedsys and Dover either without being registered with any broker-dealer or without
authorizalion from the broker-dealer. On Qctober 7, 2004, the CEQ and President of Great
LEastern Securities, Inc. (“Great Eastern™), the broker-dealer at which some of Kuretski®s sales
rcpreacntatives were employed, infonmed an Examiner and Staf! Accountant with the
Commission that Great Eastern did not authorize or approve the sale of AHF or any other
investiments outside of the finm.
B. Relief Defendants

10.  CK Holdings Incorporated is a corporation incorporated by Kuretski in the Stare
of New York on February 1, 2002, A true and correct copy of CK Holdings’ Articles of
Incorporation, filing receipt with the New York State Department of Stale and a copy of a CK
Holdings corporate resolution filed by Kuretski with the Staten Island Bank and Trust are
annexed as Ex. 8. CK Holdings' principal place of business is 125 Demopolis Avenue, Staten
Island, Now York.

11. K. Kuretski, age 55, resides at 125 Demopolis Avenue, Staten Island, New York.
She is Kuretski's maother.

12. P. Kuretski, age 56, resides at 125 Demopolis Avenue, Staten Tsland, New York,

He is Kureiski’s father.
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C. Other Entities

13. US-Medsys 13 a cerporation incorperated under the Iaws of the State of Colorade
on May 1, 1995 under the name Prime Rale Income & Dividend Enterprises (“PIDV™), Its
principal effices are located in Denver, Colorado. PIDV changed its name to US Medsys in
April 2004, US Medsys® sccuritics are registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act
and its securitics trade on the OOTC Bulletin board, On its website, the company ¢laims to be
engaged in the development, matketing und distribution of medical devices and support scrvices
o medical markets, In Novembar 2002, US Medsys acquired US Medical Systems, Ine. For
most of the relevant time period, US Medsys stock sold at a price of less than $5 per share and
was never traded on an exchange or guoted on the NASDAQ. Furthermore, US Medsys had
average revenue of less than $6 million for the last three years.

14.  Dover is a corporation incorporaied under the laws of the State of Nevada on July
9, 1998. Dover’s principal offices are located in Richmond Hiil, Ontario, Canada, The company
claims its business is the development of oil and gas leases in Wyoming and Cgypt. Dover's
securitiss are registercd pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act and its securilies are
listed on the Pink Sheets. Dover stock sold for fess than $5 per share and was never traded on an
exchange or quoted on the NASDAQ. lurthcrmore, Dover had average revenuc of less than S6
millien for the last three years.

1.
DEFENDANTS® FRAUDULENT SECURITIES OFFERINGS

Al Misrepresentations In The Offering Materials

15. Kuretski used {wo private placement memoranda ior AHF and Worldwide

(coliectively, the *Offering Memoranda™), which were somelimes provided to potential
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mvestors. Adthough the Offering Memoranda clearly were designed to be nsed together,
Kuretski rarely, if ever, provided both Offering Memoranda to potential investors.

16,  The Offering Memoranda deseribe AHF as “organized 10 invest in the equities
and debt securities markets.” {Ex. 5 at 6) The Offering Memoranda further deseribe AHF s
business objective as “to produce above average capital appreciation by actively investing [in] a
portfolio of equity and debt related instruments™ and state that “the General Partner employs an
opportunistic strategy, allowing the combination of numerous sophisticated investment strategies
in pursuit of optimal portfolio perfonmance.” (Ex. 2 at 1; Ex. 5 at 6.} For the management and
administration of AHI, the Offering Memoranda describe an annual management lee of 3% of
AHF’s assets payable 10 Worldwide. Beyond the management fee, Worldwide, as the General
Parmer of AFY, is limited to receiving a percentage of the profits, and that percentage of profits
can only be paid alter a monthly 1% return to investors. With respect to information provided to
investors, according to the AHF Offerimg Memorandum, each investor would receive, among
other things: “(i) annual financial statements, [and] {ii} monthly sumnaries of {AHF 3]
performance....” (Lix. 2 at 4.} The AHI" Offering Memorandum states that investors can
withdraw their [inds twelve months alter their imiial capital contribulion, provided that they
request the withdrawal at the end of a calendar quarter and on sixty days’ written notice to the
general partner. (Bx. 2 at 23.) Both Offering Memoranda represcited that the AHF offering was
purstant to cxemptions from the registration requirements.
B. Misrepresentations Made To Specific Investors

17. During September and October 2004, the Commission staff and I conducted

telephone interviews of eleven AHF investors. Five of those investor mterviews are summarized

below. In Seclions C through E below, 1 also refer to other AHF investors I have intervicwed
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and provide additional information about specific types of misrepresentations, including
Kuretski’s misrepresentations concerning (i) the use of mvestor funds, (ii) baseless piice and
profit predictions, and (iit) fund returns, liquidating funds and selling shares.

18.  Although Kuretski persenaily solicited investinents from investors, he also
recruited sales representatives to assist him in soliciting investors and to provide him with leads.
Some of these sales representatives were registered with broker-dealers at the time, while others
were not, Both investors and a former sales representative who worked with Kuretski have toid
e that a sales representative working with Kuretski often made the initial solicitation and the
investor then wouid be referred to Kureiski for more specific information conceming the
investment and to finalize the investment. Kuretski compensated his sales representatives
through commissions on the leads they developed.

Investor R.B.

19, On September 28, 2004, the staff interviewed R.B. by tclephone, In the fall of
2001, one of Kuretski’s salcs representatives solicited R 13, a retired chemical enginecr, to invest
with him and asked R.B. 1o fax all of his brokerage account statements to facilitate their
discussions. The representative solicited R.B. to invest in Worldwide Partners, telling R.B. that
Worldwide managed a hedge fund, and the investment would yicld annmal returns of 15%
interest, FLB. agreed to loan Worldwide $50,000, and was told that he would receive income
from this loan via quarterly interest payments. This salcs representative introduced R.B. (o
Kuretski as the manager of AHF. R.B. told the sales representative and Kuretski that he was a
faitly conservative investor. Kuretski (old R.B. that the Fund generaled exceptional profits,

greater than regular stocks. R.B. was told that AHF invested in many different securities.

Kuretski also lold R.B. that he was investing in an IR A account, although it appears 1o such IRA
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account cxisted. In reliance upen these representations, R.B. invested 5100,000 in AHF. Aller
invesling, R.B. did not receive any account staterments, and contacted the sales representative,
who then faxed him a report detailing the Fund’s performance., R.B. never recaived any
quartet]y distribution or intcrest payments. In October 2004, R.B. told the staff that in January
2002 he noticed several unauthorized trades and unautherized translers in his brokerage account.
All totaled, R.B. invested over $180,000, his enlire retirement savings.

Investor F.B.

20. Cn Scptember 24 and October 1, 2004, the staff interviewed F.I3., a self-
employed printer distributor, by telephone. In 2002, another sales representative on behall of
Kuretski solicited IF.B. to invest i AHF, telling lum that AHFE mvested m Dover. After being
introduced to Kuretski, Kurctski told F.B. that the T'und invested in Dover, US Medays, “riskless
arbitrage™ and real estate. The sales representative told 1713 that “riskless arbitrage” was
simultaneous trading between New York and India, allowing the Fund o make money on the
difference in prices between the two markets. Kuretski told 1. B. that he could withdraw his
funds from AHF as long as he provided writlen notice thirty days prior to the withdrawal date,
and sent I'.1. a lctter on Worldwide letterhead confirming that he would return F.B.'s investment
in full if"he was not satisficd. A true and correct copy of the letter is annexed as Ex. 2. In
rellance upon these representations, F.B. invested $63,911 and his wife invested $10,000 into
AHF. F.B. received statements periodically for the Fund. He has not received any profils or
distributions from the Fund. In 2004, Kuretski told I.33. that AHE had purchased shares of US
Medsys at a discount to the market price. 1n June 2004, F.B. sent Kuretski a check for $5,000 for

the purchasc of US Medsys shares. Kuretski told F.B. that the stock was restricted until

10
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November 12, 2004, at which time the restriction would be lifted and the share pricc would

increase, thereby earning a profit.

Investor C.K.C,

21. On October 6, 2004, the Commission stall interviewed C.K.C. by telephonc.
C.K.C. told the Commisston staff thal in Jate 2001 he decided to invest in Worldwide and AHF
after speaking with Kuretski and one of Kuretski’s salcs representatives at Grady & IHatch
Securities Inc. (“Grady & Hatch™), a broker-dealer where C.K.C. had a brokerage account.
Kuretski and his sales representative told C.K.C. that the Fund did arbilrage, purchasing stocks
overseas and sclling them in the United States at a profit, taking advantage of the time zone
difference, They also told C.K.C. that the Fund invested in real cstatc, bank stocks and TPO
deals. Kuretski told C.K.C. that the Fund would have a rate of return much higher than the
market, more than 10% to 20% annually, and that C.K.C. would receive profit distributions each
quarter. In reliance upon these representations, C.K.C. invested $65,000 in Worldwide and
$100,000 in AR,

22, C.K.C. never reccived any profit disinibution. In early 2003, CK.C. asked (o
withdraw his invesiment in Worldwide because he had never received any statement of his
nvestment, Kuretski told C.K.C. that his funds were not availablc because Worldwide eamed
money from A" s profits, and AHIY was not profilable.

23, In late 2003, Kuretsk: solicited C.K.C. to invest in US Medsys and seni him a
brochure. Kuretsk: told C.K.C. to wiite his check out to AHF. C.K.C. purchased 80,000 sharcs,
but only received certificates for 45,000 sharcs. My review of the transfer agent records
indicates that 43,000 shares were 1ssued to C.JE.C.. Kuretski told C.K.C. that the remaining

shares were bemng held by US Medsys.

13
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Investor B.G.

24, {On October 1, 2004, the Commission staff interviewed E.G., a rctired IBM
employes, by telephone. In the summer of 2002, R.G. received a eold call from another sales
representative. A fow years earlier, Kurelskr had mailed R.G. a prospectus for AHF, but R.G5.
had not given serious consideration to AHF at the time. The sales represcntative stated that the
Fund purchased stocks in overseas markets and promised 15% returns per month. R.G. was told
thiat he could withdraw his funds at any time. To show R.G. the Fund’s high returns, the sales
representative faxed him some investors’ account statements for April 2002, with the investors®
personal information redacted. A true and correct copy of the sales representative’s lax lo R.G.
with the investors” accoun statements 1s annexed as Ex. 10.

25, lexamined the purported AHF account statenients that the sales representative
faxed to R.(g. Both statements purport to be for the samc time period, April 2002, and they show
two different rates of return for the Pund for the same tune period: 69.09% and 43.07%. (Lx. 10)

26.  The sales representative promised that if R.G. invested now, he would
immedialely begin to receive profits in the form of ¢checks mailed to him. The sales
representative pronused that R.G. would receive more money than his original investment this
way. Inrsliance upon these representations, R.G. invested 330,000 in A, In late 2002,
Kuretski confirmed R.G."s investment and, when R.G. requested a withdrawal, sent him $5,000,
When R.G. called Kuretski a month or two later to request another withdrawal, Kuretski told him
that the Fund was not currently liquid. R.G. sporadically received account statements for AHF.
In carly 2004, a differcnt sales representative called R.G. by telephone and offered (o sell lim
stock called Pnime Rate Income & Dividend (“PIDV™) {(which later became US Medsys) for $1

per share, and told him that the stock would go up in value. This sales representative did not tell

12
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R.G. that the stock was restricled. R.G. purchased $3,000 of PIDV stock, and subsequently
learned that the stock was restricted until November 2004,
Investor M.H.

27.  The Commission staff interviewed M.H., a physician, by telephone on September
23, 2004, In the spring of 2002, M.I1. spoke with various of Kuretski’s sales representatives
about AHF. They told her that AHF was a hedge fund that invested in a basket of securities,
including Dover, According to M.H., her husband spoke to a sales representative, who
guaranteed at least a 12% return on moncy invested in the Fund. M.I1 s husband invested
$10,000 in AHF. One of the sales representatives promised her that she would receive the
Fund’s previous month's 30% profits if she invested in the Fund. The sales representative also
assurcd her that her principal would be conserved for one year, and he guaranteed that she would
be able Lo get her original investiment back after one year. In reliance upen these representations,
in the summmer of 2002 M.H, and her husband invested $300,000 in ABF.

28, Inearly 2004, one of Kurelski’s sales representatives offered MLH. shares of TS
Medsys for $1 per share, telling her that the company was planmng an TPO shortly, and that the
stock would both increase in value and be freely tradable after that point. ML, purchased
$£50,000 in US Medsys stock., When M.H. attempted to scll the stock a few weelks later, she was
told that the stock was still restricted. After she protested to an employee at National Securities
(the sale representative’s employer at the time), the employee referred M.EHL to the investor
relations contact person for US Medsys, who ultimatcly purchased her stock himself for $50,000.

29, On September 23, 2004, the stalf also interviewed M.H.’s lawyer, who 1s
haadling her potential claim against AHF and Kurctski. The lawyer told the staff that in a

conversation during the summer of 2004, Kuretski acknowledged his responsibility for M H.'s

13
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investment in the Fund, and told him that the Fund had no money to pay her claim, but Kurciski
appears to have offered to settle her claim by giving her 100,000 shares of TS Medsys stock,
claiming that the pricc would go from $1 to 33 per share by November 2004,
C. Misrepresentations Concecerning The Use of Investor Funds

30.  Inatelephone mterview on October 5, 2004, A%, told the Conmission staff that a
Kuretski sales representative told him that the Fund invested in various stocks. In a telephone
miterview on October 3, 2004, I 1. told the Commission staff that Kuretski had represented to
him that AHF would be invested in a basket of various sccurities. As poted above, investor F.B.
told the Comimission staff that Kuretski told him that the Fund engaged in “riskless arbitrage”
trading. Kurctski told investors that “riskless arbitrage” involved buying and selling large amounis
of a particular stock simultaneously on different markets around the world to take advantage of
price differences. e said that the 1'und used a special trader, who monitored the intemational
markets for these arbitrage opportunities, and he assured investors that the trading was “riskless”
because the buying and sefling occwired at the same time, and if there was no difference in price,
the transaction would not be undertaken. Although the brokerage account statements for the
Fund indicate that Kuretski did some securities (rading, a significant amount of investor funds
wcere never invested in securities or trading ai all, but were diverted to the Worldwide and CK
Holdings bank accounts, which Kuretski used for cash and personal cxpenses. (See Section I,
below.)

31.  Insome instances, Kuretski provided fewer shares of stock than inveslors actually
paid for. Investor C.K.C. tald the Commission staff that after Kuretski offered him US Mcdsys
stock, C.K.C. paid Kuretski for 80,000 shares, but the transfer agent records show that enly

45,000 shares were distributed lo C.K.C. Kuretski has failed to supply the missing shares,

14
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notwithstanding C.K.C.’s repeated demands. Similarly, investor F.B. told the Commission staff
that although he had paid for 3,200 US Medsys shares, Kuretski only sent him a certificale for
2,000 sharcs.
D. Baseless Price and Profit Predictions

32, Kuretski guaranteed some AHIY investors an annaal 12%% return, and promised even
higher returns to others. He told some investors thal he would not take 4 fee unless and until he
achieved this 12% retum. Investor A.8. told the Commission staff that Kuretski had assurcd him
that annual retims in the 20 1o 40 percent range were 4 “sure thing.” Investor R.13. told the
Commission staff that Kuretski told hini that AT generated “returns greater than regular stocks™
and that the Fund had “exceptional profits.” Investor M.H. told the Commission staff that one of
Kuretski’s sales representatives promised her an immediate 30% rcturn if she invested in the Fund,
and that her principal investment would be preserved for a yvear. Tnvestor R.G. stated to the
Commission staft that one of Kuretski’s sales representatives told him the Fund had an
“astronomical” payback, promised 15% monthiy returns and promised that R.G, would immnediately
receive mors money than his eriginal investnent. From my review of the records, including the
bank and brokerage records, neither Kuretski nor Ius sales representatives had any rcasonable or
legilnnate basts for making such guarantees and projections. in fact, Kurctski knew that the Fund,
organized in September 2001, had no proven frack record, with no past performance of trading or
CAITINRS.

33, Kuretski and his sales representatives also made bascless representations that US
Medsys stock would increase in price within specific time periods. Investor MUH. (old the
Commission staff that a sales representative told her that US Medsys was planning an 1PO shortly

and promised that the price would merease from $1 to 33 per share within two weeks. Ina

15
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telephone interview on Scptember 23, 2004, M.IL’s lawyer told the Commission staff that during
the summner of 2004, Kuretski had attempted to settle M.H. s demands for the return of her
$300,000 investment in AHE by offering her 100,000 shares of US Medsys stock. The lawyer told
the staff that Kuretska had elatmed that the price of US Medsys would inerease from $1 10 83 per
share by November 2004, On Seplember 27, 2004, the Commission staff interviewed investor
K.B. by telephone. K .B. told the Commission staff that another Kuretski sales representative told
him that if the price of US Medsys stock decreased, the sales representative would give K.B.
additional US Medsys shares {o ensure that KB, did not lose any money. KB, also 1old the
Cormmisgion staff that in or around Fale August or sarly September 2004, he drove to the Staten
Island address for Worldwide and met Kurstski, who promised that when the three-month
regtrichion on the US Medsys stock was lifted, the stock price would go up.

34, Kuretski and his sales representalives also made unsupported representations about
Dover, According to an investor complaint with the Statc of Michigan Office of Financial and
Insurance Services, they told investor 2. that Diover would be hsted on the NASDAQ within
sixty days and guaranteed that the price would go up to §4 per share at a point when it was trading
below $2 per share. A truc and correet copy of the complaint is anncxed as BEx, B,

L. Misrepresceantations About Fund Returns,
Liguidating Funds and Selling Shares

35, The evidence that 1 have reviewed mdicates that uretski concealed the fact that he
wags misapprepriating investors’ funds to pay perscnal and unrelated business expenses by
discouraging withdrawals from the Fund and by lulting mvesiors into believing that their
investments were safe and secure. Kuretski deprived investors of infenmation they needed to
evaluate their invesiments by failing to send them account statements altogether or gending

statements sporadically, and by failing to send them annual financial statements for the Fund, As g
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result, the only source of information investors had concerning their mvestments was Kuretski’s
oral representations, which as detailed herein, often vaned from mvestor to investor.

36.  Further, although the AHF Offering Memorandwmn states that investors may
withdraw their funds after a year (Ex. 2 at 23), the Conmmussion staff interviewed several
mvestors, who have tried repeatedly, but have been unable, to liquidate their AHIY investments.
Investor A.S. told the Conunisgion stail that Kuretski made promises that he eould receive his
investment back on 30 or 90 days’ notice, Investor R.B. lold the Commission staff that in
February 2002, he requested in writing that all of his funds be relurned. Kuretski refused to sign
for R.B."s letter, and the lctter was returned to R.B., unopened. Investor M.H. told the
Commissien staff that, in the spring of 2003, Kuretski told her she could not withdraw her
investment becausc the Fund’s assets were tied up in restricted stock.

37, Investor A.8. told the Conunission staff that Kuretski had told him that he could
net withdraw his investment from AHF becanse Great Eastern had frozen the Fund’s assets after
it discovered that Kuretski’s sales representatives had been soliciiing AHF away lrom the firm,
Cn October 7, 2004, the CEO and president of Great Eastern told the Commission staff that
although Great Eastern did attempt (o freeze the account of AHF after discovering m January
2003 that certain cmplevees had been working on Kuretski’s behalf, the clearing finm, First
Southwest, refuscd to honor Great Eastern’s request to freeze AHI's account. Moreover, at the
{ime Great Eastern terminated its relationships with Kuretski’s sales representatives, the accounts
at Great Easlern only contained approximatcly $3,000 worth of lignid securities and restricted
stock in the form of 600,000 shares of Dover, which was not liquid due to a trading restriction on

the security.
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38,  Investors IL. and R.G. told the Cormmniszien staff that, at the time they purchased
their US Medsys stock in eady 2004, Kurelski assured them that the restrictions on their US
Medsys stock w-:)uh?i be lifted in Junc 2004, But when they tried to sell their sharcs after June
2004, Kuretski told them that the restriction had been extended to Noveamber 12, 2004,

F. Kuretski Used Visionary Medical Consulting As A
Condnit For Investors® Purchases of US Medsys Stock

39, Investors R.G., CK.C. and M_H. told the Commmssion staff that when they
purchased their US Medsys stock, Kuretski and/or his sales representatives instructed them te
malce their checks payable to Visionary Medical Consulting. Investor R.G. told the Commmnission
staff that he seni the check o Kuretski’s 125 Demopolis Avenuc address, and later received the
stock certificates in an envelope bearing 134 Covinglon Circle as a return address, C.X.C, lold
the Commission slaff that Kurctski personally picked up his check, made out to Yisionary
Medical Consulting, at C.K.C.’s home in Brooklyn. Despite paying Visionary Medical
Consulting, the transfer agent records indicate that investors R..['_i. and C K.C. received their
stock certificates as the result of a transler of stock from the Worldwide stock certificate.
Annexed hereto is Ex. 12, a true and correct copy of the instruction letter lrom Worldwide 10
Corporate Stock Transfer, the transfer agend, mstrucling the ransfer of shares from Worldwide 1o
various investors.

4. M.H., who also made her check payable to Visionary Medical Consulting, told the
Commission staff that, after she had purchased the US Medsys stock, one of Kuretski’s sales
representatives told her, to her surprise, that she had purchased the stock from Kuretski. I have
obtained from National Secunilies a copy of a letter, dated 3/31/04, from Kuretski to National
Sceuritics (at the time, the employer of the sales representative who sold M H. the US Medsys

stock}. The letter states that Kuretski assumed responsibility for ensuring that M.H. would ke
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refunded her investment in US Medsys. A true and correct copy of Kurelski’s letter, dated
3/31/04, 15 annexed as Ex. 13

41.  T[have reviewed transfer agenl records for US Medsys, which I obtained from
Corporate Stock Transfer. Anmnexed as Fx. 14 is a spreadshect that T prepared, based upon my
review of the Corporate Stock Transfer records, showing the distribution of TS Modsys shares
by AHF, Worldwide and others. Those records indicate that several investors obtained their
slock directly from the cerlificates held in the name of Worldwide Partners, the general partuer
of the Fund. The bank and brokerage records of Worldwide, however, do not reflect the receipt
of the investors” funds which Worldwide should have received in payment for these shares.
Instead, the investors’ funds went 1o Visionary Medical Consulting. On 7/1/04, AHF wansferred
120,000 shares of US Medsys to a comipany called “VS8M Consulting.” See Ex. 14. On the same
datc, VEM Consulting transferred 150,000 shares to AHF. The transfer agent records indicate
that VSM Consulting is the same entity as “Visionary Medical Consulting.”

42, In additicn to the fact that Kuretski instructed investors to send their money to
Visionary Medical Consulting, the transfer agent records also indicate that Kuretski has some
relationship to Visionary Medical Consulting. Visionary Medical Consulting’s tetter of
authorization for the 7/1/04 transfer of shares to AHF is signed by an individual named Robert
Rustico. In this letter of authorization, Rustice informs the fransfer agent that he can be
contacted via a phone number that belongs to Kuretski, Annexed hereto as Ex. 35 is a true and

correct capy of the anthorization letter.
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M.

THE DEFENDANTS MISAPPROPRIATED AND
DISSIPATED INYESTORS® FUNDS

43, The Commission staff has obtained from the FRI copies of records produced
voluntarily by Kuretski’s accountant, Brian Zucker. The records produced by Zucker consist of
spreadsheets listing investors and the details of their investments. The stafl has also received
bank and brokerage accouni statements, including aceount stalements produced voluntarily by
Kuretski. Layla Assanie, an Bxaminer with the Commission, reviewed the brokerage and bank
account records for AHF and Worldwide, as well as the bank records of CK Hoidings, a personal
bank account of Kuretski. Based on her review, Ms. Assante prepared a scrics of spreadsheets
angd summaties annexed hereto of the account transactions reflected in the records. T have
reviewed all of the brokerage and bank account records obtained by the Commission staff, as
well as Ms. Agsante’s spreadshects referred to herein and annexed as Exhibits. Ms. Assante’s
spreadsheets accurately represent the information contained n the brokerage and bank account
records. Amnexed as Ex. 15 is a spreadsheet of investors, based upon the investor lists contained
in the Zucker documents. Ex. 15 shows that Kuretski raiscd $1,557,895 from investors. The
bank and brokerage records that I have reviewed show that, to date, Kuretski has
nmusappropriated approximately $1,528,552 from investors. Annexed as Ex, 16 15 4 sumimary
spreadshest showing the totals and types of expenses that Kuretski paid for using the bank
accounts. Anncxed as Ex. 17 is a spreadshect detailing the cxpense transactions contamed in Bx.
16.

44, The bank and brokerage records indicate that, when investors sent their funds for
investment, those funds were deposited in various brokerage, bank and escrow accounis of AHF

and Worldwide. Although, the Commission slaff does notl have complete infonnation with
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respecl Lo the bank and brokerage accounts, the staff has been able to trace to specific investors
$651,100 that was deposited into these accounts,
A, BROKERAGE ACCOUNTS

435, From at least November 2001 to the present, AV, Worldwide and CK Holdings

have maintained the [ollowing brokerage accounts:

Entity Time Period Broker-Dealer Aeount Nomber
AHF '
11/01 - 8/03 Grady & Hateh / Circat Eastern Securitfes, Tng, 12939500
(*“Great Bastern™)
203 - 60 National Securities Cotporation 1122.3525
(*National Securitics™)
/04 - i Joseph Btevens & Co., Inc. (“Joseph Stevens™  4171-16237%
Worldwide
L0 — 60 Mational Securities 27755285
G0 — S04 Joseph Stevens 4U1-1623461
CK Holdiogs
203 — O Maticeal Securities 2131-5274
304 — 704 Newbridge Securities Corp. {“Newbridge™} L3054 808-E3
&/04 — 3 Joseph Stevens dUL-162387

The Commission staff reccived account statements for the above-listed accounts directly from
First Southwest Company (clearing broker for Great Eastem), First Clearing (clearing bioker for
Mational Securities), Pershing, LLC (ctearing broker for Joseph Stevens) and Wachovia
Scecurities LLC {on behalf of Wexford Cleaving Services, LLC, clearing broker for Newbridge).
Kuretski had trading authority over all of the above-listed accounts and nscd cither the 125
Demepolis Avenue or the 134 Covington Circle address for these brokerage accounts,

46, Annexed as Ex. 18 1s a spreadsheet showing a companson of menthly account
balances, from November 2001 to the present, in the bank and brolerage accounts of AHF,

Worldwide and CK Holdings. Ex. 18 shows thal, of the approximately $1.6 million of investors’
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fonds raised by Kuretski, as of 9/30/04 only $148,229.60 remains m the brokcrage accounts of
AHF, Worldwide and CK Ileldings, collectively.
B. BANK ACCOUNTS

47,  Kuretski opened bank accounts at Staten Island Bank & Trust for AHF (account
no. 1590002763), Worldwide (account ne. 1590002739} and CK Holdings {account no.
15390003475). Kuretski, through his counscl, has granied the Commission staff permission to
obtain copies of documents he has produced to the FBI, includmg the account statements for the
bank accounts. Ihave reviewed the bank account slalements produced by Kuretski and his
accountant, Brian Zucker.

43,  The AHF bank records show that Kurctzki opened the account in November 2001,
and that all activity in the account had ceased by Seplember 2003, The account balance on that
date wag zero, During the time it was open, Kuretski deposited approximately $1.459 million
into the account. Annexed as Ex. 19 is a spreadsheet of all iransactions in the AHF bank
account. Annexed as Ex. 20 is a spreadsheel showmyg all deposits into the AHF account. The
Commission staft hag been able to race $412,100 of those funds to AHF investors, Ex, 20 lists
the AHF deposits traceable to investors,

49.  The Worldwide bank rccords show that Kureisla opened the account in November
2001. The records show thal, as of 9/30/04, the account balance was $23,662.63. Fron the
account’s inception to 9/30/04, Kuretski has deposited approximately $595,879 into the account.
Amnnexed as Ex. 21 is a spreadshect of all transactions in the Worldwide bank account. Annexed
as Ex. 22 is a spreadsheetl showing all deposits into the AYF account. The Commission staff has
been able to trace $239,000 of thosc funds from investors. Ex. 22 lists the Worldwide deposits

traceable to investors.
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50.  The CK Holdings bank records show that Kuretski opened the account in May
2002, The records show that, as of 8/30/04, the account balance was $2,094.60. From (he
account’s inception to 8/3{/04, Kuretski has deposited into and withdrawn from the account
approximatcly $1.87 million. Annexcd as Ex. 23 is a spreadsheet of al transactions in the CK
Heldings bank account,
C. WORLDWIDE’S ESCROW ACCOUNT

51.  The Comimission staff has obtained direcily from Continental Stock Transfer &
Trust Company (“CST&T™) a copy of an Escrow Agreement pursuant to which Kureiski, on or
arrc:und October 4, 2001, opened an escrow account in the name of Worldwide with CST&ET. A
true and correct copy of the Bscrow Agreement botween Worldwide and CST&T is anncxed as
Ex. 24; a true and correct copy of cxecrpted account statements produced by CSTE&T is amexed
as Ex, 25, CST&T also provided the Comnussion staff with a spreadsheet which they prepared
summarizing the transfers into and out of the Worldwide escrow account. A true and correet
copy of the CST&T spreadsheet is annexed as Ex. 26. The documents produced by CST&T
show that investors deposited a total of $230,000 into the escrow account, and that Kuretski
transferred all of the investors® funds from the escrow aceount 1o Worldwide®s bank accouni,
except for $1,000, which he used to pay CST&T s account fees.

D. KURETSKI MISAPPROPRIATED AND DISSIPATED INVESTORS® FUNDS
THROUGH TRANSFERS TO BANK ACCOUNTS THAT HE CONTROLLED

1. Kuretski Used Investors’ Fomds To Pay For
Personal And Unrelated Business Expenscs

52,  Ex. 10, referred to above, 1s a spreadshect summarizing cxpenses by ype that
Kuwretski paid for using the bank accounts. Lx. 16 shows thal Kuirelsk paid approximatcly $1.5

million in various expenscs that were unrclated 1o the business of AHF. e withdrew $376,128
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iz cash, wrote $202,487 in checks to himsell and withdrew approximately $9,000 in ATM
withdrawals. Kuretski also made $225,575 in commission payments to certain individuals who,
the Conumnission staff believes based upon other evidence we have reviewed, were invalved in
soliciting AHF, 1}S Medsys and Dover stock on Kureiski’s behalf. Kuretski uscd the bank
accounts 1o pay 531,874 in miscellaneous personal expenses, $19,551 in travel and entertainment
expenses, $19.418 in utility bills and $2,789 in insurance.

53. Annexed as Bx. 27 is a spreadsheet showing the total withdrawals by payee from
the bank accounts of AHF, Worldwide and CK Holdings. Ex, 27 shows that Kuretski transferred
$256,000 of investors” funds from the AHF and Worldwide bank accounts to the CK Holdings
bantk account. Based upen the transactions in the CK Holdings bank account statements, which 1
have revicwed, it appears that Kuretski used this accounl to pay certain personal cxpenses, such
as car payments, home renovaliens, ATM withdrawals and the operating expenses of ¢ restaurant
that he appears to have had an ownership interest in. Attached as Ex. 28 is a spreadshcct
showing all wathdrawals from the CK Holdmgs bank account, Kurctski withdrew $280,069 in
cash and, bebween May and August 2004, wrote three checks, totaling $89,000, 1o his father,
Peter Kuretski.

34, InJuly and September 2002, investor M.H. wired $200,000 to AHF’s bank
account, See Ex, 1% In September 2002, Kuretski wired $258,000 out of this accoumt to an
HSBC bank account in the .name of Diatech Consulting Corp. According to an Auto-Track
report, Diatech Consulting Corp. i8 controiled by an mdividual named Brett Diamond, and
Diamond 15 listed as a resident of Kurelski’s residence at 134 Covington Circle. A (rue and

comrect copy of the Auto-Track report is annexed as Ex. 29,
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55, Worldwide has two automobiles registered at 125 Demopolis Avenue: a 2000
Lexus RX300 sporls uhility vehicle, registered on October 9, 2002 and a 1999 Porsche 911 sporls
car, registered on August 12, 2002, A truc and correct copy ol an Auto-Track report showing
these two registrations is ammexed as Ex. 3{). Kuretski used $30,863 from the bank accounts to
pay for these two vehicles. Annexed as Ex. 31 is a spreadsheet itemizing al car-related expenses
that the stafl has identified in the bank records.

2. Kuretski Used Investors’ Funds To Pay
For A Residence At 134 Covington Circle

56. In addition, it appears that in July 2002, Kuretski purchased his Staten Tsfaul
home, located at 134 Covington Circle, using approximately $100,000 in investors® [unds, but
recorded the deed in the name of his mother, K. Kuretski, in an apparent effort to secrete assets
from defrauded mvestors. I have been informed by the FBI that P, Kuretski stated in an
interview in August 2004 that Kuretski purchased a housc at 134 Covington Cirele, Staten
Island, New York under his mother’s name, K. Kureiski, because Kuretski is in the securities
industry and wanted to protect his assets fronm investors’ lawsuits. In addition, I have reviewed
Richmond County deed recards showing that on July 3, 2002, K. Kuretski purchased the house
located at 134 Covington Circle from Dora Homes, Ine. for $499,300. A true and correct copy
of a Lexis printont of the property transfer record ts annexed as Ex. 32, The property transfer
record shows that the purchase price was paid with $100,700 in cash and a mortgage m the name
of . Kuretski in the amount of $399,200 with Washington Mutual Rank,

57. The AHF and CK Holdings bank records show that, between 3/21/02 and 7/3/02,
Kuretski wrote four checks totaling $195,000, drawn on the AHF bank account and made

payable to CK, Holdings. See Exs. 19 and 23, Kurelsk deposited these checks into the CK
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Holdings account, The CK Holdings bank records show that on 5/23/02 a $75,000 check cleared
the CK Holdings bank accouni, On 5/289/02, according to documents obtained from the seller of
the house, Kuretski’s girlfriend wrote a check for ¢lose to $20,000 to the seller for 134
Covington extras.” Annexed as Ex. 33 is a truc and correct copy of the cheek. T addition, on
5/30/02, Kuretski wrote six checks out to cash from the CK Holdings bank records, totaling
approxunately 525,000 and ecndorsed the checks to himself. At the closing on July 3, 2002,
Kuretski and K. Kurctski presented a $70,000 cashier’s check for the purchase of the home.
Annexed as [x. 34 is a true and correct copy of a statement of closing for the house. Based upon
P. Kurctski’s statements about Kuretski’s ownership ol 134 Covington Circle and our review of
the bank and cther records, [ believe that the above checks could be related to the cash down
payment of $100,700 that the deed transfer rccords show was paid at the closing on 7/2/02.

58, Moreover, several of the personal expenses that Kurciski charged to the AHF,
Worldwide and CK Hoidings bank accounts appear to relate to (he renovation of his home. The
bank records show that Kuretski spent approximately $39,707 on expenscs that appear to relate
to home improvement. See Ex. 16.

IV,

EVIDENCE OF ONGOING FRAUD

59.  The staff has evidence that Kuretski is embarking on misrepresentations and
fraudulent offerings. For examplc, Kuretski recently told investor K.B. that he should not worry
about his US Medsys investment, (hat he would receive certificales shortly and that US Medsys
would go up in value in November 2004 when the trading restriction is lifted. Tn August 2004,

investor F.B. believed he purchased 3,200 shares of US Medsys from Kuretski, However, on
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September 7, 2004, Kuretski instructed the transfer agent to issue only 2,000 shares to F.B. On
September 13, 2004, F.B. was issued the 2,000 shares. Around this same time, Kuretski
promised investor F.B. that he wonld soon receive his stock certificates. To date, F.B. has not
received those certificates. In August 2004, Kurctski also olfered investor M.H.s lawver
100,000 shares of US Medsys that Kurctski said would go up in value o $3 per sharc when it
became freely tradable in November 2004,

50.  The stalf believes that Kuretski plans to liquidate any remaining holdings in the
accounts of AHF, Werldwide, and other accounts he controls. Bascd on representations made to
certain investors and irfonnation received from the FBI, I belicve the tracling restrictions on US
Medsys stock will be lifted on November 12, 2004, According to iransfer agent records,
Kuretski and accounts associated wilh Kuretski currently control at least 1,229,900 shares of
restricted US Medsys shares. From the transfer agent records and information provided by the
FBI, I believe that others associaled with Kuretski own an additional 1,070,000 shares of US
Mcdsys. Tbelieve Kuretski and his associates may sell these shares in the near future and use the
proceeds for their own benefit.

01, Asrecently as October 2004, according to the FBI, P. Kuretski stated that
Kuretski gave him checks to deposit into I, Kuretski’s aceounis until Kuretski asked for the

funds back for a future investiment. Kuretski further 10ld P. Kuretski that Kuretski did not want

to deposit the funds directty into his bank accounts because Kuretski did not want the funds

coming from his business accoumls.
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62.  Based on the bank and brokerage records I have reviewed, which include records
through September 30, 2004, Kuretski continnes (o transfer funds out of his and the fund

accounis,

Pursuant to 28 U.8.C. §1746, I, Terrence P, Bohan, declare under penalty of perjury that the
foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on ﬂctober%f » 2004
New York, New York

[P Bl

Terrence P. BDhaI.l, Staff Accountant
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